
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 

7:00 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 

Posted: 3/14/14 
 

AGENDA 
 

The City of Traverse City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to or 
treatment or employment in, its programs or activities. Makayla Vitous, Assistant City Manager, 400 
Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan 49684, 922-4440, T.D.D., 922-4766, has been designated to 
coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements. If you are planning to attend and you 
have a disability requiring any special assistance at the meeting and/or if you have any concerns, please 
immediately notify the ADA Coordinator. 
 
Planning Commission 
c/o Russell Soyring, Planning Director 
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, MI 49684 
231-922-4778 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL   
 
3. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
4. LOT D BOARDMAN RIVER BOATLAUNCH PROJECT REVIEW FOR CONSISTENCY WITH 

MASTER PLAN (ACTION REQUESTED) 
 

5. WEST FRONT STREET BRIDGE PROJECT REVIEW FOR CONSISTENCY WITH MASTER PLAN 
(ACTION REQUESTED) 

 
6. CONSIDERATION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS REVISED 

FEBRUARY 21, 2014 TO CHANGE THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING TIME FROM 7:00 
P.M. TO 7:30 P.M. (ACTION REQUESTED) 
 

7. A BUILDING HEIGHTS (DISCUSSION) 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 



    
 Agenda Item No. 4  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  March 18, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

 SUBJECT: Project Review for Consistency with Master Plan for Lot D 
Boardman River Boatlaunch Project  

 
                 DATE:  March 13, 2014 
 
Pursuant to the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Planning Commission is being asked to 
determine if Lot D Boardman River Boatlaunch Project is consistent with the Traverse City 
Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character:    
 
 
Location   
 

The project is located at the SE Corner of Park Street and Grandview Parkway, north of 
the Boardman River. 
 

 
 
The Master Plan designates this area to be within the TC-5 Downtown Neighborhood 
and TC-C Campus areas of the community.  In TC-5, the Master Plan calls out for the 
Boardman River to be integrated with the fabric of the neighborhood.   

 
 
Extent 
 

The project is bounded by the river on the south and east, the Grandview Parkway to 
the north and Park Street to the west. 



 
 
Character 
 
The parking lot/boat launch project will upgrade the pedestrian environment by using 
decorative, porous pavers near Park Street where pedestrians cross to get to the bay adjacent 
to the Park Street.  Water access will be enhanced with a kayak/canoe launch that is ADA 
compliant and measures will be taken to reduce the environmental impact via the use of 
vegetation (trees and plants) and pavement that allows stormwater to infiltrate the soil versus 
being discharged directly into the river.  Highway stormwater runoff in the area will also be 
filtered.  These changes will further the objectives found in the Natural Resources Element that 
reads, “Reduce nutrients and sediments entering all water bodies.” and “Manage stormwater 
quality and quantity on site.”  A sign will be installed to inform the public of actions to take to 
reduce the potential of invasive species.  The DNR Waterways Division questioned the 
effectiveness of a boat washing facility and did not support funding for a boat washing facility.   
 

 
 
The project advances the goals of the Parks and Recreation Element that states the City should 
promote access points along Boardman Rive  and water related recreational use of this natural 
feature.  The kayak/canoe launch will provide universal access which supports the Parks and 
Recreation Element’s objective to “Implement universal accessibility design principals as a 
design standard for all new facilities.” 
 



 
If you find the project is consistent with the Master Plan in terms of its location, extent and 
character, the following motion would be appropriate: 
 
I move that the Lot D Boardman River Boatlaunch Project is found to be consistent with the 
City Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
Attachments 
 
RAS 
  



March 12, 2014  
 

 

Planning Commissioners  
City of Traverse City  
400 Boardman Ave.  
Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

 

 
Re: Lot D Boardman River Boat Launch Project  
 
Dear Planning Commissioners,  
 
I am writing on behalf of The Watershed Center Grand Traverse Bay (TWC) related to the Lot D 
Boardman River Boat Launch Project.  TWC appreciated the opportunity to sit down with 
Engineering Department staff on March 10th to discuss project details for the boat launch 
related to stormwater management.  While meetings like this are not required, TWC frequently 
receives inquiries from the public and local government officials regarding our opinions on many 
different types of projects throughout our watershed, and we believe it is beneficial for us to 
receive project details as early on in the development process as reasonable in order for us to 
provide input and respond to inquiries in an informed fashion.   
 
After meeting with city engineering staff, receiving the geotechnical report, and discussing site 
conditions with engineering staff, we agree with the Engineering Department's remarks on the 
constraints at the site eliminating the use of rain gardens and limiting the use of other 'low 
impact development' (LID) techniques that encourage the infiltration of stormwater onsite.  While 
handling all the stormwater through natural infiltration with no direct outlet to surface water 
would be ideal, the site conditions dictate otherwise.  We also do not object to their plan outlined 
in the 2/26/13 memo to the Planning Commission to handle stormwater at the site.   
 
The geotechnical report details elevated levels of heavy metals in the soil at the site, which was 
formerly a bulk fuel storage area and junkyard.  Increasing water infiltration throughout the site 
by wide usage of rain gardens, underground infiltration trenches, and porous pavements could 
"...provide enhanced/increased infiltration through environmentally impacted soils and arguably 
could be considered as a use with potential for exacerbation of the existing contamination by 
increased infiltration, increasing the potential for leaching of contaminants to the underlying 
aquifer.... this potential is low, but further evaluation and assessment or elimination of the 
porous pavement in areas with environmental impact is recommended." (page 16 from 
Boardman River Boat Launch Park Lot Property Subsurface Environmental and Geotechnical 
Investigation).  In addition, adding rain gardens and increasing infiltration and soil water content 
along the steep streambanks could destabilize the banks and cause slumping and bank failures.  
Simply put, many LID techniques will not work at this site because of the steep banks, soil 
contamination levels, and limited space to work with.   
 
Utilizing LID at a project site may also entail employing management and site planning concepts 
in addition to structural BMPs like porous pavements, bio-swales and rain gardens.  In addition 
to the structural component of porous pavement utilized at two locations at the site, the following 
site management concepts are being employed: maintaining existing vegetation and buffers 

 

13272 S. West Bay Shore Drive      
Traverse City, MI  49684     

 T 231.935.1514     
 F 231.935.3829      

www.gtbay.org 



along stream, elimination of impervious surfaces by taking out sidewalk along parking spaces, 
and restoring natural vegetation along streambank were needed.   
 
Although site conditions show that this location is not ideal for demonstrating a variety of LID 
design options to treat and infiltrate stormwater runoff, the overall design for the new boat 
launch site will reduce sedimentation and nutrient inputs to the Boardman River and Grand 
Traverse  Bay, the top two pollutants in the watershed, through the use of porous pavements 
and an oil/grit separator.    
 
We would also like to stress the importance of proper maintenance of any installed BMPs on the 
project site.  A properly maintained BMP is key to its proper function and pollutant removal 
capacity.   Anticipated periodic maintenance needs at this site discussed with engineering staff 
include parking lot sweeping, vacuuming of porous pavement areas, catch basin and oil/grit 
separator cleanouts, and maintenance/replacement of "Bio-Skirt" filters.  To that end, we urge 
both the Planning Commission and City Commission to support necessary measures to ensure 
that the proper maintenance for BMPs will occur (i.e. staff costs/time, replacement materials, 
etc.).   
  
TWC also discussed invasive species education opportunities at the site with city staff as well.  
We have pre-designed educational signs we could share with you to use at the site (see 
attached examples) with some minor modifications made to the design.  We plan to meet with 
city staff in the future to discuss these details.   
 
TWC has collaboratively worked on many water quality projects in the City already, with 
engineering expertise provided by the City.  TWC brings to the partnership experience with 
water quality issues, innovative techniques, and creative design options, as well as access to 
funding.  Our role has typically been to provide options related to water quality improvements, 
bring new innovative ideas to the table, and bridge the gap between technical project details 
and the public.   TWC has enjoyed a good working relationship with the City and will continue 
efforts on water quality improvement projects when practical.   
 
In the future TWC would be willing to meet with Engineering Department staff to discuss water 
quality issues on other projects early on in the decision making process to avoid any project 
delays.  
 
  
 
Thank you for your time, 
 

 
 
Sarah U'Ren 
Program Director 



BOATING FACTS
G R A N D  T R AV E R S E  B AY  WAT E R S H E D

This material is provided through the Grand Traverse Regional Invasive Species Network (ISN), coordinated by the Grand Traverse Conservation District and funded by the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency’s Great Lakes Restoration Initiative. To learn more, visit www.NatureisCalling.org.

INVASIVE SPECIES HURT OUR WATERS
Invasive species are one of the top threats to our local environment and 
economy.  They ruin boat engines and cost millions to control each year.  
There are already more than 182 invasive species in the Great Lakes basin.  
Their rapid spread is largely due to human activities such as boating,  
bait dumping and cargo transport. 

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN HAS:

• More than 1 million boaters 

• 13,752 boatable lakes

• 2,147 miles of Great Lakes shoreline

• Great potential for spreading invasives!  

INVASIVES THREATEN OUR WATERS BY:

Reducing native species populations, including game fish, by competing for food and habitat

Reducing property values through degraded water quality and excess plant growth

Limiting access to boating and swimming areas due to excess plant growth

Threatening water tourism-based local economies

HERE ARE SOME EASY WAYS YOU CAN HELP:

Never move live plants, fish or other animals away from a water body.

Never release fish, plants or pets into another water body or storm drain.  
Put unused bait in the trash.

Remove any mud, plants, fish or animals from boats, trailers and equipment at boat access  
before leaving each water body.

Drain water from motor, live well, bilge and transom wells at boat access before  
leaving each water body.

Power wash boats, trailers and equipment at 104 degrees or dry for five days to kill  
microscopic larvae before boating in a different water body.

Wash dogs with the warmest water possible after they swim, and brush them thoroughly.

Thank you for your vigilant help! For more information visit: gtbay.org

Zebra mussels, Eurasian milfoil and round gobies 
are three such invasives that have altered our 
aquatic ecosystems.

Grand Traverse 
Regional Invasive Species Network

round gobies

zebra mussels

eu
ra

sia
n 

mi
lfo

il



  

 

 



    
 Agenda Item No. 5  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  March 18, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

 SUBJECT: Project Review for Consistency with Master Plan for the 
West Front Street Bridge Project 

 
                 DATE:  March 13, 2014 
 
Pursuant to the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Planning Commission is being asked to 
determine if the West Front Street Bridge Project is consistent with the Traverse City Master 
Plan in terms of location, extent and character:    
 
 
Location   
 

The project is located along West Front Street from the West Front Street Bridge to 
Maple Street.  If the estimated construction costs exceed funding availability, the 
project west of the bridge will be shortened commensurately. 
 

 
 
 
The bridge and this section of West Front Street are within the TC-5 Neighborhood.  This 
neighborhood type focuses on pedestrian travel with access to a well established 
sidewalk system.  Motorized travel speeds are intended to be restrictive.  In TC-5, the 
Master Plan calls out for the Boardman River to be integrated with the fabric of the 
neighborhood.   

 
 
 

Maple 
Street 



Extent 
 

The project falls within the 66-foot wide West Front Street right-of-way from just east of 
the bridge to Maple Street.  The blue box in the above aerial shows the approximate 
extent of the project. 

 
 
Character 
 

The proposed project has a bias towards pedestrian travel with wider sidewalks while 
the travel lanes and bike lanes are proposed to meet NACTO’s Urban Street Design 
Guide’s minimum widths for a street that is both a primary truck and transit route.  
Parking lanes will also be marked at minimum widths.  The street width is planned to be 
widen slightly as recommended in the Corridors Master Plan. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bulb outs or neck downs are proposed at the intersections or in mid block locations with 
the purpose of shortening the crossing distance for pedestrians while helping to give the 
street a more narrow appearance to encourage slower travel speeds.  The 
Transportation Element has as an objective to “Use design elements to increase mobility 
and decrease speed.”  This project is intended to meet that objective.   
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
The new bridge construction will incorporate comfortable areas for pedestrians to enjoy 
the scenic overlook of Boardman River.  The bridge design will incorporate a boardwalk 
under the bridge along the west abutment wall with connecting links to the street level 
walks.   Funding parameters require the street travel lanes be maintained, however, the 
parking lanes may be eliminated for wider walks and/or planters on the bridge deck.  
 

 
Bridge photo is for general character reference only. 
 



 
Bridge photo is for general character reference only. 
 
Vertical elements, ornate light poles, decorative bridge railings and a contrasting bridge 
surface will clearly identify the bridge’s span.  The traveler along Front Street will know 
they will be approaching a bridge in either direction.  The new bridge’s side profiles will 
emulate the graceful arches of the existing bridge.  

 
 
If you find the project is consistent with the Master Plan in terms of its location, extent and 
character, the following motion would be appropriate: 
 
I move that the West Front Street Bridge Project is found to be consistent with the City 
Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character. 
 
Attachments 
 
RAS 
  



Agenda Item No.   6  
 

              Communication to the Planning Commission  
             
  
      FOR THE MEETING OF:  MARCH 18, 2014 
 
      FROM:  RUSS SOYRING, PLANNING DIRECTOR 
 

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION BYLAWS REVISED FEBRUARY 21, 2014 TO 
CHANGE THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING TIME FROM 
7:00 P.M. TO 7:30 P.M. 

 
       DATE:  March 13, 2014 
 
 
At the February 19, 2014 meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the amended 
meeting time request proposed by Commissioner Warren and agreed that meetings 
beginning at 7:30 p.m. were desirable for the Planning Commission. To make that change, it 
requires that the Planning Commission amend its Bylaws. The Bylaws state that the draft 
changes are presented to the Commission in writing and then acted upon at a following 
meeting. The draft bylaw amendments were included for review in the March 4, 2014 
Planning Commission packet and Staff is requesting action at the March 18, 2014 meeting. 
 
If the Commission votes in favor of the Bylaw amendment, then our April 1, 2014 meeting, 
and all meetings thereafter, will begin at 7:30 p.m. 
 
If the Commission is supportive of the amendment, then the following motion would be 
appropriate: 
 
I move that the Planning Commission Bylaws be amended as proposed in the February 
21, 2014 revision, to change the Planning Commission meeting time from 7:00 p.m. to 
7:30 p.m. 
 

   

RAS:mll 



PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
(Adopted December 13, 1988) 
(Revised December 6, 1994) 

(Revised August 9, 1995) 
(Revised January 19, 2000) 
(Revised August 23, 2000) 

(Revised June 6, 2007) 
(Revised May 7, 2008) 

(Revised January 7, 2009) 
(Revised September 9, 2009) 
(Revised November 1, 2011) 

(Revised November 25, 2013) 
(Revised February 21, 2014) 

 
PURPOSE:  
These Planning Commission Bylaws are adopted pursuant to the Traverse City Code to acquaint the 
people of Traverse City and persons appearing before the Commission with the operation of the 
Commission so that matters coming before this body can be handled in an understanding, prompt and 
efficient manner. 
 
I. AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION: 

The City Planning Commission derives its authority from the City Charter Section 160, which 
states AThe City Commission shall by ordinance establish and maintain a City Planning 
Commission having the powers and duties prescribed by State law;@ and the Traverse City 
Code (Chapter 1220).  That these laws state that the City Planning Commission shall have the 
powers and duties authorized and directed by the City Charter, the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act of P.A. 12 of 2008 as amended, and the Michigan Planning Enabling Act of P.A. 33 of 
2008 as amended. This section also provides for establishing the membership of the 
Commission, the meetings of the Commission and grants the authority to the Commission to 
adopt rules and procedures for the conduct of their business. 

 
II. OFFICERS: 

A. A Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary shall be elected by majority vote of 
the members of the Commission every year at the first regular meeting in the month of 
January. 

 
Such other officers as are deemed necessary and advisable for the conduct of business 
shall be appointed as required and provided for by the Commission. 

 
B. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and shall appoint such committees as 

may be authorized by the Commission, and be an ex-officio member of such 
committees. 

 



The Chairperson, subject to these rules, shall decide all points of order or procedure 
unless otherwise directed by a majority vote of the Commission in the session at that 
time. 
 

C. The Vice-Chairperson shall preside and exercise all of the duties of the Chairperson in 
his or her absence.  Should neither the Chairperson, nor the Vice-Chairperson be 
present at a meeting, a temporary Chairperson shall be elected by a majority of the 
members present. 

 
D. The Secretary shall record the meeting minutes. 

 
E. In the event that an officer shall leave the Commission before the expiration of his or 

her term, the Mayor, City Commission or Mayor with City Commission approval shall 
appoint a new officer to serve out the remainder of his or her term. 

 
III. MEETINGS: 

A. All regular and special Commission meetings shall be open to the public. 
 

B. The regular meetings of the Commission shall be held on the first Tuesday of each 
month, except when such Tuesday falls on a legal holiday or conflicts with the City 
Commission meeting schedule. 

 
C. A special meeting of the Commission may be called by the Chairperson, the Vice-

Chairperson in the event the Chairperson is out of town, or any three members of the 
Commission.  Each member of the Commission must receive at least eighteen (18) 
hours notice as to the time, place and purpose of the meeting in writing, delivered or 
served personally at his or her usual place of residence, except that the announcement 
of a special meeting at a time at which all members are present shall be sufficient 
notice of such meeting. 

 
D. Study meetings may be held on the third Tuesday of the month, as called for by the 

Commission or Chairperson, except when such Tuesday falls on a legal holiday or 
conflicts with the City Commission meeting schedule. 

 
E. Meeting agendas shall be approved by the Chairperson.  The agenda shall be sent to 

the Commission no later than on the Friday preceding the regularly scheduled meeting. 
In unusual circumstances, items may be added to the agenda by the Chairperson prior 
to the meeting. 

 
F. A quorum of five (5) members must be present to constitute an official meeting of the 

Commission. 
 

G. All hearings shall be scheduled at the hour the meeting is scheduled to be. 
 

H. All regular meetings shall begin at 7:030 p.m. and no new items requiring action shall 
be taken after 10:00 p.m. unless otherwise determined at the meeting. 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 3  
 
 

I. The conduct of the Planning Commission business shall be governed by the current 
edition of Robert=s Rules of Order unless otherwise modified by law, ordinance, or 
these rules of the Planning Commission. 

 
IV. VOTES: 

The concurring vote of a majority of members present at a regular or special meeting shall be 
necessary to pass on any matter referred to them.  The adoption of a master plan, or of any 
such part, amendment, extension or addition shall require the concurring vote of six (6) 
members of the Commission. 

 
V. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 
 

Upon disclosure of a conflict of interest the member shall be disqualified from voting on the 
matter at issue. 

 
A. Appearance of Conflict.  An appearance of a conflict exists when a reasonable person 

would believe that because of certain facts a Planning Commissioner's participation in 
a proceeding would create an appearance of impropriety, partiality, bias or lack of 
fairness. 

 
B. Contractual Conflicts of Interest. The conduct of City officials and employees in 

relation to conflicts of interest involving contracts shall be as established by State law. 
 

C. Financial Conflict of Interest. An official or employee who has a financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in any matter to be decided by the City, other than with respect to a 
contract, shall make that interest known and shall refrain from voting upon or 
otherwise participating in the making of the decision. Violation of this subsection with 
the knowledge, express or implied, of the person or corporation dealing with the City 
shall render the decision voidable by the City Manager or the City Commission. Any 
official or employee violating the provisions of this subsection shall be deemed guilty 
of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction shall forfeit office. A financial conflict of 
interest may be waived by the City Commission after full disclosure of such conflict to 
the Commission. Unless otherwise provided by law or ordinance, the remaining 
members of the Commission in a unanimous vote may rule that the best interests of 
the City are to be served by removing the prohibition on voting and participating in the 
matter.  

 
VI. PROCEDURE: 

A. All inquiries, applications or matters requiring official action by the Commission 
which is not specifically mentioned below shall be submitted in writing at the offices 
of the Planning Department.  This must be done at least seven (7) days prior to the 
meeting of the Commission at which consideration is requested. 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 4  
 
 

B. Requests for rezoning subdivision approvals, Special Land Use Permits and Planned 
Unit Developments shall be filed on application forms obtained from the Planning 
Department. 

 
C. Rezoning, Special Land Use Permit, Planned Unit Development, subdivision approval, 

lot split and alley and street vacationing requests shall be submitted at least seven (7) 
days prior to the meeting for introduction before the Commission.  If the Commission 
finds the submission complete, then a public hearing date shall be scheduled to 
consider the request. 

 
D. The Commission and/or the Planning Director may require such surveys, plans or 

other information as may be reasonably required by said Commission for the proper 
evaluation or consideration of the matter. Written documentation from the petitioner 
should be presented to the Commission which will give full information as to the 
intentions of the petitioner, as well as a legal and informal description of the property 
in question. 

 
E. In the event that sufficient data has not been furnished, the Commission shall table the 

matter until such time as the required information has been furnished. 
 

F. All proceedings, decisions and resolutions of the Commission shall be initiated by 
motion.  The vote upon motions and resolutions may be recorded by roll-call vote.  All 
members, including the Chairperson, may vote on each motion. 

 
G. In the event a petitioner requests that his or her item be tabled, after it has been 

published, noticed and scheduled, the public hearing may be held to allow interested 
citizens an opportunity to speak to the request, then tabled to a specific future meeting 
and scheduled in sequence on the agenda. 

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. The primary function of the public hearing process is the gathering of information 
through public testimony and written documentation.  The nature of the evidence 
received during this process will in many cases require further careful consideration to 
assure a logical and just decision.  The Commission shall therefore determine at each 
public hearing the meeting date at which a decision will be rendered. 

 
B. The applicant or the applicant=s authorized agent must be present at the public hearing 

to properly answer questions concerning the request.  If the applicant or agent is not 
present, the request may be tabled until the next meeting or dismissed at the discretion 
of the Commission. 

 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 5  
 

C. The Commission shall hold a public hearing on any proposed amendment to the 
zoning ordinance or zoning map.  Official notice for the Commission public hearings 
shall comply with the requirements and procedures established by Section 1320.04 of 
the City Code of Ordinances.  The Commission shall recommend approval or denial of 
the amendment, and shall transmit, in writing, its recommendation to the City 
Commission for official action. 

 
D. The Commission shall hold a public hearing on any proposed City Commission 

authorized Special Land Use Permit.  The official notice of public hearing shall 
comply with Section 1364.04, of the City Code of Ordinances.  The Commission may 
recommend denial, approval or approval with conditions after said hearing and 
notification as provided herein.  Its recommendation shall be incorporated in a 
statement of conclusions specifying the basis for the recommendation and any 
conditions imposed, which statement shall be transmitted to the City Commission for 
official hearing and action. 

 
E. The Commission may hold a public hearing with such notice as it deems advisable for 

Planned Unit Developments.  After review by the Commission, it shall submit a 
written recommendation to the City Commission. 

 
F. In the case of lots splits resulting in the creation of a new buildable lot, the 

Commission may in its discretion hold a public hearing on the matter and make a 
recommendation to the City Commission for appropriate action. 

 
G. The Commission may hold a public hearing with such notice as is deemed advisable 

for public street and alley vacations and openings.  After review by the Commission, it 
shall submit a written recommendation to the City Commission. 

 
H. The Commission will not reconsider any request on which a negative decision has 

been rendered within one (1) year from the date of the Commission=s decision on the 
request unless it can be shown by the petitioner that substantial new information 
affecting the request which was not presented to the Commission at the previous 
hearing(s) is now available and would affect the original decision rendered.  Said 
substantial new information shall be described in writing by the applicant at the time 
of application.  Before re-hearing the request, the Commission shall decide whether 
there is substantial new information allowing the new hearing. 

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT AT REGULAR MEETINGS.  The Planning Commission welcomes 

public comment and has prescribed the following to facilitate the conduct of public business. 
 

A. Public Comment during Agenda Items.  Any interested person wishing to address the 
Planning Commission regarding an Agenda Item may do so during discussion of an 
agenda item prior to action recognized by the presiding officer or upon request of any 
Commissioner.  All persons must identify themselves and their address and direct their 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 6  
 

comments to the Commission.  The comment of any member of the public or any 
special interest group may be limited in time to five minutes except as provided in 
subsection (D).  As part of its deliberation, the Planning Commission may clarify, 
answer questions and ask questions as a result of public comment. 

 
B. Public Comment during the designated Public Comment Section - General.  Any 

interested person wishing to address the Planning Commission regarding other matters 
may do so under the designated Public Comment section.  All persons must identify 
themselves and their address and direct their comments to the Commission.  The 
comment of any member of the public or any special interest group may be limited in 
time to five minutes except as provided in subsection (D).  Questions posed may be 
answered at the meeting or may be referred to staff for response at a later time. 

 
C. Public Comment during the designated Public Comment Section - Planning 

Commissioners.  Planning Commissioners interested in making a public comment may 
do so under the designated Public Comment section.  Further, Planning 
Commissioners may briefly respond for clarification purposes as a result of public 
comment. 

 
D. Order and Duration of any Public Comment.   The presiding officer shall control the 

order and duration of any public comment subject to appeal.  The presiding officer 
shall have the authority to limit and terminate any public comment that becomes 
disruptive, unduly repetitive, or impedes the orderly progress of the meeting.  Items 
not appearing on the agenda will not be acted upon by the Planning Commission 
except in accordance with these rules. 

 
IX. AMENDMENTS: 

A. These bylaws may be amended or modified provided that such amendment or 
modification is presented in writing at a meeting, and that favorable action is taken 
thereon at a subsequent meeting. 

 
B. Six (6) members of the Commission by due motion and recorded vote may suspend or 

vary the application of these rules to a particular application, case, problem or 
proceeding pending before the Commission. 

 
X. PLANNING COMMISSION POLICIES FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION TO THE 

 NEWS MEDIA: 
 The Commission will provide information to the news media in the following manner: 

 
A. Upon request, the agenda of a specific meeting will be sent out to the various news 

media at the same time they are sent to the Commission. 
 



Planning Commission Bylaws     Adopted December 13, 1988 
Last Revised February 21, 2014        Page 7  
 

B. The news media should be advised that if they do not attend the meeting, they can call 
the Secretary the morning after the meeting, and he or she will advise them of the 
action which was taken by the Commission. 

 
C. Upon request by the news media for a specific Commission meeting, the minutes for 

that meeting will be provided to the requesting party. 
 

D. At such time as the Commission may invite in outside experts, or for study sessions 
which relate to some major program which may be evolving, the Secretary may notify 
the news media of such a meeting and request their presence if directed by the 
Commission.  This will enable the news media to obtain this background information 
in the same fashion as the Commission, thereby enabling them to have a better basis 
for reporting future actions of the Commission relative to the proposed programs. 

 
I hereby certify that the above 
document was adopted by the Traverse 
City Planning Commission at their 
March 18, 2014, Special Meeting. 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Jan Warren, Secretary 
Traverse City Planning Commission 

 



SIZE AND AREA REQUIREMENTS 
 

TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: BUILDING HEIGHT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Section 1361.01, Building Height, of the Zoning Code of the Traverse City Code of Ordinances, 
be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
  

 

1368.01 BUILDING HEIGHT. 
(a) Purpose.   The height standards serve several purposes: 
 (1) They promote a reasonable building scale and relationship of one building  
  to another; 
 (2) They promote options for privacy for neighboring properties; and 
 (3) They reflect the general building scale and placement of buildings in the area. 
(b) All maximum heights below may be further limited to ensure the maximum safety  
 in the use of the Cherry Capital Airport. 
(c) Height requirements.  The maximum and minimum height requirements are  
 indicated in the following chart: 
 

 
District 

 
 

 
Feet 

(max) 

 
 

 
District 

 
 

 
Feet 

(min-max) 
 
OS 

 
 

 
45 

 
 

 
C-41 

 
a 

 
 

 
30-458 

 
RC 

 
 

 
45 

 
 

 
b 

 
 

 
30-60(682,4,8) 

 
R-1a/ 
R-1b 

 
 

 
35 

 
 

 
c 

 
 

 
30-852,5,8 

 
 
R-2 

 
 

 
35 

 
 

 
T 

 
 

 
45 

 
R-9 

 
 

 
40 

 
 

 
GP 

 
 

 
25-90 

 
R-15 

 
 

 
40 

 
 

 
I 

 
 

 
60 (public utility 
buildings - 100') 

 
R-29 

 
 

 
40 

 
 

 
NMC-1 

 
 

 
45 

 
HR 

 
 

 
4058 

 
 

 
NMC-2 

 
 

 
90 (On Bay: 50') 

 
C-1 

 
 

 
308 (4053,8) 

 
 

 
H-1 

 
 

 
45 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H-2 

 
See H District Chapter 

 
C-2 

 
 

 
308 (4053,8) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C-3 

 
  

 
 458 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D 

 
See D District chapter8   

 
 

 
PRD 

 
See PR District chapter 

 

1   Buildings in the C-4 District shall have a minimum height of thirty (30) feet, except an  
existing building may have an addition of no larger than the area of the first floor of that building as it existed on the 
effective date of Ordinance No. 467, which is July 16, 1999. 



SIZE AND AREA REQUIREMENTS 
 
2 Over sixty (60) feet in height may be allowed only by special land use permit or as part of a planned unit 
development and subject to the requirements listed above.  
3 Forty (40) feet in height is allowed if at least one floor is designed and used for residential uses. 
4 Sixty-eight (68) feet in height is allowed if at least 20% of the building is designed and used for dwellings. 
5   An additional fifteen (15) feet is allowed for rooftop mechanical equipment or elevator shafts, but not to exceed an 
overall height of one hundred (100) feet.  Buildings over 60 feet tall shall have at least 20% of the building designed 
and used for dwellings. 
6  Air traffic control towers are exempt from this height requirement. 
7 All existing buildings may double their existing first floor area. 
8 All buildings that front the street, except for parking structures, accessory and utility buildings and buildings that 
are intended and designed to be exclusively developed for residential use shall have a minimum height of 15 feet 
measured from the finished first floor to the finished second floor. 
 
 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HOTEL RESORT DISTRICT 

TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: HOTEL RESORT (HR) BUILDING HEIGHT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Section 1338.06, Building Height, and Section 1338.09, Special Requirements, of the Zoning 
Code of the Traverse City Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 
1338.06 BUILDING HEIGHT. 

(a) Building height: Maximum 405 feet.   
(b) Exceptions: 

Steeples and clock towers may be erected to a height not exceeding twice the height of the 
attached building. 
Parapet walls may be erected as necessary to screen rooftop equipment if the wall extends 
around the perimeter of the building and incorporates exterior building materials similar to 
those of the main building. 

 
1338.09 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS. 
The following are additional requirements for hotel, motel and restaurant uses:  

(a) Mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view using the same materials used for 
the building walls or material which is approved by the Planning Director as visually 
compatible with the building. 

(b) The main entry door of the principal building must face the street. 
(c) Window openings in the principal building must constitute a minimum of 40 percent of the 

area of the first story street wall facing any public street unless the building is solely for 
residential use. 

(d) Window glazing shall be recessed from the outside of all walls. 
(e) Vertical building modulation shall be used to add variety and interest and to make a large 

building appear to be an aggregation of smaller units.  Relief from a continuous street-facing 
wall may be achieved with wall offsets in combination with pilasters, corbeling or other 
permanent architectural elements, however, offsets in any wall shall not be less than eight 
inches from the subject plane.  

(f) All buildings that front the street, except for parking structures, accessory and utility 
buildings and buildings that are intended and designed to be exclusively developed for 
residential use shall have a minimum height of 15 feet measured from the finished first floor 
to the finished second floor. 

 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 



HOTEL RESORT DISTRICT 

meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	2014_0318PlanningStudyAgenda
	Project Review Consistency with Master Plan Parking Lot D
	City of TC-Boardman Boat Launch_followup letter_031214
	Project Review Consistency with Master Plan West Front Street Bridge
	Bylaw amendments_ action
	2-21-14
	1368.01 building height
	1338.06 and 1338.09 HR building height

